
SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, January 11, 2016 
 

6:00 pm 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. MINUTES – December 14, 2015 
 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. The Connector Bus – Town Manager update on meeting with Superintendent 
Laurie Linscott 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Update on Public Safety Good Neighbor and Telecare Programs – Sergeant 
Bailey 

b. Discussion of concept for Public Safety Advisory Group – Sergeant Bailey 
c. Update from January 7, 2016 meeting of Recreation Committee and review of 

correspondence regarding Skehan Center lease 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 



SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, December 14, 2015 

 
MINUTES - DRAFT 

 
Attending: 
 Councilor Terry McAvoy   Councilor William Shakespeare 
 Mayor David Ryder    Councilor Stephen Wilde  
 Councilor Dennis Marble   Recreation Director Shelley Abbott  
 Town Manager Angus Jennings  Resident Francis Pergolizzi 
 
Chairman McAvoy called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

1. MINUTES – November 9, 2015 – It was motioned and seconded to approve the 
minutes of the November 9, 2015 Services Committee meeting. Unanimous vote 
(4-0) in favor. 
 
(Councilor Wilde arrived). 
 

2. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
a. Interview: Francis Pergolizzi, Recreation Committee – New Applicant – 

Mr. Pergolizzi appeared before the Committee and presented his experience 
relevant to the Recreation Committee, including 24 years as an intercollegiate 
athletic director and 16 years coaching college football. The Committee 
members expressed their appreciation for his interest to serve, and said we 
need more people like you. Motion by Councilor Shakespeare seconded by 
Councilor Marble to recommend that the Council appoint Francis Pergolizzi to 
the Recreation Committee. Unanimous (5-0) vote in favor. 

b. Anthony Mourkas, Dyer Library Board of Trustees – Re-Appointment 
c. Cheri Condon, Dyer Library Board of Trustees – Re-Appointment 
d. Patrick Foley, Pool Board – Re-Appointment 
e. Stephanie Shayne, Recreation Committee – Re-Appointment  

Motion by Councilor Marble, seconded by Councilor Shakespeare, to 
recommend Council reappointment of Anthony Mourkas to the Library Board 
of Trustees, Cheri Condon to the Library Board of Trustees, Patrick Foley to 
the Pool Board, and Stephanie Shayne to the Recreation Committee. 
Unanimous vote in favor. 

 
3. OLD BUSINESS – None.  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Update on Public Safety Good Neighbor and Telecare Programs – 

Sergeant Bailey – Due to a last-minute conflict Sergeant Bailey was unable 



to attend the meeting so at the recommendation of the Town Manager this 
agenda item was postponed until the January 11, 2016 meeting. 

b. Discussion of concept for Public Safety Advisory Group – Sergeant 
Bailey - Due to a last-minute conflict Sergeant Bailey was unable to attend 
the meeting so at the recommendation of the Town Manager this agenda item 
was postponed until the January 11, 2016 meeting. 

c. Skehan Center – Town Manager update on recent meeting and building 
tour, and ongoing facilities cost analysis – Recreation Director Shelley 
Abbott – Town Manager Jennings provided background regarding the work 
underway to fully understand the operating costs associated with the Town’s 
lease of the Skehan Center. Recreation Director Abbott reported on a site 
visit and review including her, the Town Manager, the DPW Director and the 
Town’s HVAC contractor when it was determined that portions of the Skehan 
Center building outside of the Town’s leased area are being heated, with 
charges adding to the Town’s costs. On a separate date, while electrical work 
was being completed outside of the leased area, the lights went out within the 
leased area, so it is known that these electrical lines are connected. Councilor 
Marble said it is the building owner’s responsibility to know how the different 
portions of the building are heated. Mayor Ryder said that the Recreation 
Department needs a facility with appropriate parking and facilities, and asked 
Director Abbott how the Department could function if it had a different facility 
rather than the Skehan Center. Director Abbott said it would depend on 
whether a facility was designed and sized appropriately. The Skehan Center 
facility is oversized for the Department purposes, and it was noted that the 
back half of the space, including locker rooms, is underutilized but adds to 
heating and maintenance costs. The constraints on parking are causing 
challenges for senior citizens participating in programs. Mayor Ryder noted 
that there’s very little parking, and no outdoor space for kids to run around. 
Director Abbott noted that the building boiler had not been replaced, as had 
been expected as part of the lease.  
 
Councilor Shakespeare said that something about how the electrical costs are 
allocated doesn’t add up, and that the wiring is atrocious. He agreed that it is 
the building owner’s responsibility to resolve this. He noted that senior 
citizens who use the facility love it. He wondered what a new facility would 
cost. Mayor Ryder charged Manager Jennings with communicating these 
issues to the building owner to see if he’d make changes to rectify the cost 
allocation for heating and electrical. Councilor Marble said that Manager 
Jennings has the backing of the Council. 
 
Mayor Ryder asked about parking. Director Abbott said that 50-60 senior 
citizens attend the morning sessions, and that while our lease says we have 
21 dedicated parking spaces we’re down to 18 due to recent re-striping, and 
sometimes others (including contractors working on the building) park in spots 
dedicated to the Skehan Center. She noted that the Christmas Tree sales 
have also made a lot of spaces unavailable, pushing more people to the 



Skehan Center spaces. Councilor McAvoy asked whether, if the Town was to 
terminate the lease, the space may still be available for rental on a per-hour 
basis to allow for continuation of the senior citizens’ exercise program. He 
acknowledged that parking will continue to be a constraint, and said he would 
support terminating the lease. Councilor Wilde said that the information we’re 
learning raises concerns but that we need to talk with the building owner.  
 
Manager Jennings said that he and Director Abbott would continue to 
document costs associated with Skehan Center operations. The Committee 
directed them to prepare two alternate budget proposals for FY17: one with 
the Skehan Center and one without, and including analysis of how each of 
these scenarios would affect both costs and Recreation programming. This 
alternatives analysis would support the Committee’s and the Council’s 
deliberations regarding FY17 budgeting. 
 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None. 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Mayor Ryder said that we need to look 
at Recreation fields and facilities town-wide in a coordinated way. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
 
Angus Jennings 
Town Manager 



  
 
TO:  Services Committee, Terry McAvoy, Chair 
 
FROM:  Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 
DATE:  January 7, 2016 
 
RE:  Update on meeting re The Connector Bus  
 

 

Following on direction from the Council to open a dialogue regarding the cost structure for The 
Bus (see excerpt of 11/9/15 Minutes, enclosed), I met with The Bus Superintendent Laurie 
Linscott on December 16. This memo summarizes my notes from that meeting, and is intended 
to advance the process of evaluating this service and associated costs leading up to FY17 
budgeting. 
 
The Bus is governed by the Federal Transit Authority and receives FTA funding for Small Transit 
Intensive Communities (STIC). Funding is based on ridership, but data in the National Transit 
Database runs 2-3 years behind, so it takes some time for increases in ridership to translate into 
more funding. The Bus had over 1 million passengers in 2013, and expects to start to see 
increased funding from that year in the next funding round. Additional revenue sources include 
advertising, fares, and municipal contributions. Efforts are underway to expand advertising 
revenues. 
 
The allocation of costs among municipalities is as follows: Bangor 70%, VOOT (Veazie Orono Old 
Town) 15%, Brewer 10%, and Hampden 5%. These percentages have not changed since around 
2011. No upward adjustment to Hampden’s share was made when Saturday service was added 
in 2011, and no downward adjustment was made when Saturday service was discontinued.  
 
Revenues from the sale of monthly passes are allocated toward the different communities’ costs 
proportionally to these percentages. Fare revenues collected for riders on the Hampden route, 
such as from passengers boarding the Bus at the Casino bound for Hampden, are fully credited 
toward Hampden. 
 
Costs for each section of the route are apportioned based on the actual maintenance, fuel and 
personnel costs for that route. Bus drivers are unionized, so drivers with more seniority receive 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 



greater pay. If, for instance, the driver on the Hampden route has longer tenure, this would 
translate to relatively greater costs to cover this pay. Each community, including Hampden, also 
pays fuel and maintenance for the Bus that serves that route.  
 
The age and condition of the Bus fleet varies significantly. Bangor recently bonded the purchase 
of two buses (~$450,000/each), and The Bus secured five old buses for free from Westchester 
County, which then received an “end of life resuscitation” (~$126,000). However, there are other 
buses in the fleet that have 800,000 miles on them. At one point in the past Hampden purchased 
Bus 9, but that bus is long since gone.  
 
Recent ridership data shows the following breakdown among the routes: 
 

 
Ridership Percent 

Hampden 43,545 4.9% 
VOOT 155,136 17.6% 
Brewer 110,000 12.4% 
Bangor 575,000 65.1% 

 
883,681 

  
Laurie said that there used to be more ridership from Hampden Academy students, and she 
suggested ways that ridership could be increased through route modifications. She emphasized 
that the route is entirely within the Town of Hampden’s ability to determine, and she offered to 
fund a mailing to properties within proximity to the Bus if that would be helpful to get public 
input to determine how the route or schedule could be changed to improve service. 
 
I conveyed to Laurie the Council’s concern about the costs, and that this line item in the budget 
would be examined closely within the FY17 budgeting process.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

b. The Connector Bus – discussion of costs and benefits – Councilor 
Shakespeare spoke to discuss his request for this item to be included on the 
agenda. He said that he is not against the Bus running five days a week, but 
that it bothers him to see it running empty day after day. He said that it is 
utilized here and there, and picks people up at Hannaford’s and along Main 
Road, but that he feels ¾ of the riders are from Bangor. He feels that the town 
should negotiate its cost share, and that the town should not be paying more 
than ¼ of the cost (of the Hampden route). He does not see the need for Bus 
service to the 4-mile square, and suggested that Hannaford’s could be the 
area’s bus stop.  Councilor Sirois said that Hampden’s costs should relate to 
who is picked up or dropped off in Hampden. Councilor Shakespeare said 
that they don’t have the equipment or practices to track where people are 
picked up and dropped off. Councilor Wilde said that, north of Bangor, three 
towns split the cost among themselves. Councilor Shakespeare said that he’s 
not against helping Bangor, but that we’re paying almost $100,000 a year. 
Councilor Wilde said that bus service supports our economic development, 
but Councilor McAvoy said that Hermon doesn’t have bus service and it 
hasn’t hurt them. Councilor Wilde said we need to look at the bigger picture. 
Mayor Ryder said we could buy a bus and hire two retirees part-time to run it. 
Councilor Marble said it’s a bigger issue than ridership, that it can’t be 
evaluated solely on a cost basis. Bangor provides most of the jobs for 
Hampden residents, and if we limit it too much we’ll hurt people who rely on 
the service. He suggested that Town Manager Jennings contact Laurie 
Linscott to convey the Council’s concerns regarding whether the current cost 
would be supported in the FY17 budget. Councilor Wilde agreed that the 
Town Manager should open a dialogue about the cost structure, and 
Councilor Marble said it should be made clear that the Council is not eager to 
continue at the current costs. Councilor Sirois agreed that the costs are too 
much, but said it’s a service we need to continue. Town Manager Jennings 
will follow up with Laurie Linscott. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None.  
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Councilor McAvoy asked the Town 
Manager for an update on the town’s franchise agreement with Time Warner 
Cable, as well as more information about the town’s role in a regional consortium 
relative to cable. He would like to know whether the requirements for cable 
coverage in Hampden are being met. Mayor Ryder said it is hard to fathom that 
every house in town doesn’t have the ability to access cable. Councilor Marble 
said there is a reimbursement opportunity for costs incurred for town investments 
in cable, and Councilor McAvoy said that PEG funds (Public Education and 
Government Access) were drawn from customer payments of the franchise fee 
on everyone’s cable bills. Town Manager Jennings said he would learn more 

townmanager
Text Box
Excerpt of Services Committee Meeting Minutes 11-9-15



Hampden
Monday Through Friday

A B C D E D B A
Bangor
Depot

Shaws Beal 
College

Hannaford/ 
Hampden 
Academy

Downtown 
Hampden

Hannaford/ 
Hampden 
Academy

Shaws Bangor 
Depot

6:15 6:20 6:23 6:35 6:45 6:48 7:00 7:10
7:15 7:20 7:23 7:35 7:45 7:48 8:00 8:10
8:15 8:20 8:23 8:35 8:45 8:48 9:00 9:10
9:15 9:20 9:23 9:35 9:45 9:48 10:00 10:10
10:15 10:20 10:23 10:35 10:45 10:48 11:00 11:10
11:15 11:20 11:23 11:35 11:45 11:48 12:00 12:10
12:15 12:20 12:23 12:35 12:45 12:48 1:00 1:10
1:15 1:20 1:23 1:35 1:45 1:48 2:00 2:10
2:15 2:20 2:23 2:35 2:45 2:48 3:00 3:10
3:15 3:20 3:23 3:35 3:45 3:48 4:00 4:10
4:15 4:20 4:23 4:35 4:45 4:48 5:00 5:10
5:15 5:20 5:23 5:35 5:45 5:48 6:00 6:10



GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM 

 

Purpose:  Hampden Public Safety would like to provide support to families affected by Alzheimer’s, 
related Dementia or other memory or cognitive impairment issues.   This voluntary program is used to 
identify, monitor and assist families with the safety of their loved one.   

How do I get started?   The person with Alzheimer’s, related Dementia or other memory or cognitive 
impairment issues, or an authorized person, can begin the process of enrolling the affected person in the 
Good Neighbor Program.  The authorized person must submit documentation evidencing that person’s 
authority, such as a Power of Attorney, Guardianship, or Advance Directive.  The process begins by 
submitting a completed Participant Form to Hampden Public Safety.    
 
Where do I get the Participant Form?  The form is available at Hampden Public Safety; 106 Western 
Ave or on the website at  http://www.hampdenmaine.gov. 
 
What happens after the Participant Form is completed?  The information on the Form will be made 
available to public safety personnel should the person become lost or reported missing.  A member of 
Hampden Public Safety will also meet with the person and /or family to assist with providing resources if 
needed.  The information on the Participant Form will be kept confidential by the Town of Hampden to 
the greatest extent permitted by law, including the privacy of health information under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA).  
 
How could the Good Neighbor Program be helpful?  The person with Alzheimer’s, related Dementia 
or other memory or cognitive impairment issues may leave that person’s residence or other location either 
on foot or in a vehicle and be unsure how to get back.  If someone calls to report the person missing, 
Hampden Public Safety will already have most of the required information, including a recent photo.  
This will expedite the search process and significantly increase the chances of bringing the person home 
safely.    
 
Who qualifies for the Good Neighbor Program?  Any Hampden resident with Alzheimer’s, related 
Dementia or other memory or cognitive impairment issues. 
 
Is there any cost to participate in the Good Neighbor Program?  No.  This is a service provided by 
Hampden Public Safety. 
 
How long do I stay in the Program?  The affected person will remain in the Program until the person, or 
an authorized person, provides the Town with written notice of withdrawal from the Program.   Hampden 
Public Safety personnel will periodically contact the affected person, or the authorized person, to make 
sure that the information on the Participant Form is still accurate.  The photo may also be updated. 
 

 

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/































